ł

Ţ

ł

ł

ł

ł

IN THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

NO.2008-CP-01438-COA

JON KURRIE PETERSON

VS.

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI



NOV 1 5 2008

OFFICE OF THE CLERK SUPREME COURT COURT OF APPEALS

BRIEF OF APPELLANT

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED,

Telesson, ie.

JON KURRIE PETERSON, #65059 DELTA CORRECTIONAL FACILITY 3800 COUTNY ROAD 540 GREENWOOD, MS 38930

APPELLANT

APPELLEE

IN THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF MISSISSIPPI NO.2008-CP-01438-COA

JON KURRIE PETERSON

APPELLANT

vs.

L

1

L

L

ł

L

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

APPELLEE

CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PERSONS

STATEMENT OF ISSUES

(1) NEWLY DISCOVERED EVIDENCE

L

ł.

- -

- (2) APPELLANT WAS DENIES A FAIR TRIAL BECAUSE OF PROSECUTIORIAL MISCONDUCT BY ALLOWING FALSE EVIDENCE TO BE PRESENTED TO THE JURY
- (3) PROSECUTORIAL MISCONDUCT IN FAILING TO TURN OVER TO THE DEFENSE EXCULPATORY DOCUMENTS WHICH WERE REQUESTED BY DEFENSE IN THE MOTION FOR PRODUCTION AND INSPECTION
- (4) APPELLANT HAS BEEN DENIED HIS DUE PROCESS RIGHT TO CONFRONTATION BY PROSECUTORIAL MISCONDUCT
- (5) PROSECUTORIAL MISCONDUCT IN CLOSING ARGUMENT
- (6) INEFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF APPELLATE COUNSEL
- (7) TRIAL COURT ABUSED ITS DISCRETION IN DISMISSING APPELLANT'S POST-CONVICTION MOTION AFTER STATE FAILED TO FILE AN ANSWER.

STATEMENT OF CASE

On the 22nd of April,2008, Appellant filed into the Circuit Court of Harrison County, Mississippi, his "Motion to Vacate Judgement and Sentence or in the Alternative Motion For New Trial with Brief in Support" being cause NO.A2401-08-129. Appellant filed this Motion, which was a successive motion pursuant to Mississippi Code Ann. Section 99-39-23(6) (Reve.2000), pursuant to Mississippi Code Ann. Section 99-39-5(1)(a), (e), and (i) (Rev.2000).

On the 23rd day of July 2008, the Circuit Court of Harrison County, Mississippi dismissed Appellant's Post-Conviction Motion pursuant to Mississippi Code Ann. Section 99-39-7(Rev.2000). This Appeal stems from the denial of Appellant's "Motion to Vacate Judgement and Sentence or in the Alternative a Motion For New Trial".

1.

ł.

ł

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

(1) NEWLY DISCOVERED EVIDENCE

L

ł.

ł

ł

Contraction of the second

Appellant Jon Kurrie Peterson, (hereinafter known as Appellant), had brought his "Motion to Vacate Judgement and Sentence or in the Alternative Motion For New Trial"under the exceptions of Mississippi Code Ann. Section 99-39-5(2) (Rev.2000), which states in pertinent part;

> "...that he has evidence, not reasonably discovered at the time of trial, which is of such nature that it would be practically conclusive that had such been introduced at trial it would have caused a different result in the conviction or sentence."

Appellant did present the claims of his motion under this standard, because of the fact that the State had committed and act of prosecutorial misconduct by the withholding and suppression of exculpatory evidence. The newly dicovered evidence was available at the time of the trial but, could not have been discovered by due diligence by the defense.

Appellant, who had contacted the New Orleans Innocence Project in 2003, requested that their office to begin an investigation into his case. It was during this investigation that it was discovered that the Harrison County Prosecutor's Office had withheld state lab reports and other scientific evidence that was exculpatory in nature.

On January 15th 2008, representatives from the New Orleans Innocence Project, along with Appellant's father John K.Peterson, met with the Honorable W.F. Holder, III, Attorney-At-Law, who had been Appellant's trial counsel, to dicuss the possibility that these documents had been withheld from the defense prior and during Appellant's trial.Mr. Holder, did state he would review his files to see if he had information concerning these documents.

Once Mr. Holder had investigated this matter, it was discovered that the documents that were in Appellant's possession, had not been turned over to him by Harrison County Prosecutor's Office on the defense's discovery request. Mr. Holder did give a sworn affidavit attesting to the fact that documents in question were never turned over to him by the State were exculpatory in nature.

(2)<u>APPELLANT WAS DENIED A FAIR TRIAL BECAUSE OF PROSECUTORIAL MISCONDUCT BY</u> ALLOWING FALSE EVIDENCE TO BE PRESENTED TO THE JURY

Newly discovered evidence did show that the State had presented false evidence

to the jury, thus denying the Appellant his right to a fair trial as guaranteed by the Sixth Amendment of the United States Constitution and his comparable rights pursuant to Article 3, \$26 of the Mississippi Constitution.

This false evidence consisted of a shovel which the state did introduce during the trial as the shovel used by the Appellant to bury the body of the victim.This piece of evidence was introduced by the State via its star witness, Vanessa McClendon.

Ms.McClendon did testify that she did witness the Appellant use the shovel to bury the victim.(Tr.403-407).By the questioning of McClendon, the State gave the impression to the jury that the shovel was positive proof that Appellant had killed the victim.

But, what the State had failed to mention, was the fact that the report from the Mississippi Chemical Lab, could not connect the dirt from the grave site and the dirt from the shovel as being the same. The test results from the Lab stated that the dirt from the grave site and the dirt found on the shovel was "significantly different".

The State had purposely withheld this lab report from the defense, thus allowing this damnable false evidence to be presented to the jury as a conclusive fact. This was in direct violation of **Rule 4.06(Now Rule (9.04)** of the Uniform Rules of Circuit and County Court Practice. This was so because the defense had filed for discovery on the 13th day of December, 1995.

This was in direct violation of Appellant's right to **Due Process** pursuant to the **14th Amendment of the United States Constitution** and his comparable rights pursuant to **Article 3,\$14 of the Mississippi Constitution**. As the States withholding of this crucial evidence which was exculpatory in nature, did prejudice the Appellant as he was left without a defense to the claims of Vanessa McClendon, the state's witness, and, the state's claim that the shovel was used to bury the victim.

The State did further extend their perfidious false evidence to mislead the jury, with the testimony of Detective Andy Calvannese. This testimony was given to bolster the State's lack of evidence from the Mississippi State Crime Lab that would connect the .25 calibor pistol that did belong to Appellant as the murder weapon.

The ballistics report from the Mississippi Crime Lab was inconclusive as to whether the projectiles removed from the body of the victim came from the

میں میں میں دور میں میں م Appellant's weapon. The Lab Report did state that: "[T]he projectile marked 6A bears some similarities in class characteristics with those produced by the gun in exhibit 4". The ballisics report was inconclusive as to whether Appellant's weapon was used in the murder.

The State sought to cure this deficiencey in the ballisic report by allowing Detective Andy Calvanese to testify that the gun barrel had been marred by the Appellant th throw off the ballistic examination. The following colloquy was held between the state and Detective Andy Calvanesse:

> "Q.But then you received information, did you not, after that that supposedly the gun had been cleaned , didn't you?

A.Yes!

l

Q.Okay, and did you get any in depth meaning of that or just cleaned?

A.I was told that the gun barrel of the gun.

Q.Was cleaned.

A.Had been damaged and cleaned, yes!

Q.All right.But you really don't know what was meant by cleaned?

A.The statement was quite clear." (Tr.252)

This was hearsay and was not supported by any expert proof of any type to support such a conclusion .The State did elicit this false evidence from Detective Andy Calvanesse to mislead the jury from the fact that the state could mot connect Appellant's weapon to the murder.

The State did then call Rudy Marin, who was another of the State's star witnesses to indentify Appellant's weapon as the actual murder weapon. This witness did state that Appellant had told him that he shot the victim with the pistol. This was hearsay that was unsupported by any offer of scientific proof or evidence.

The State allowed this false testimony to be given, while the state did withhold from the jury the actual ballistic report from the Mississippi Crime Lab. The State knew that this report would have shown that Rudy Marin was not a credible witness. Thus the State had suppressed this exculpatory ballistics report from the jury. In doing this, did deny the Appellant his due process right to present favorable evidence in his defense.

4.

______ _____ Also there was the alleged 'burt shoe remnants."The State did attempt to mislead the jury this alleged proof that Appellant had burnt his clothes after the murder. The only problem with this, was the fact that there had not been any forensic testing done that would have supported such a conclusion that the State had presented.

The allegedly burnt shoe remnants were taken from a burn pile that Appellant's parents did use behind their house to burn trash.Earlier in the trial,Evidence Technician,Lou Ann O'Bannon had testified that you could not identify the burnt remnants as part of a tennis shoe.Also,O'Bannon had testified that the burnt remnants had not been scientifically tested to determine where this material had originated from.(Tr.293).

But, the State did state to the jury that the burnt remnants taken from the burn plie behind Appellant's parents home, were the actual shoe remnants from Appellant's shoes (Tr.297). The State did take this perfidious false evidence before the jury in closing arguments, and did state that they knew that Appellant had burned his shoes after the murder, and that these burnt remnants proved the testimony of the State's two star witnesses. (Tr.707;733).

Appellant's due process rights were violated by the state's introduction of this false evidence, and testimony of its witnesses. The State did allow the false evidence to go uncorrected, and did deny Appellant his right to confrontation by withholding documents that would have shown that the evidence and testimony of the State's witnesses to have been false.

Due process and fundamental fairness did require that State to correct this false evidence, eves if such evidence could have been used to bolster the credibility of the State's witnesses. On the other hand, the State had a duty to correct the false testimony of its own witnesses. In the State's failure to perform this duty, did deny Appellant of his right to be only tried by an impartial jury.

(3) PROSECUTORIAL MISCONDUCT IN FAILING TO TURN OVER TO THE DEFENSE EXCULPATORY DOCUMENTS WHICH WERE REQUESTED BY DEFENSE IN THE MOTION FOR PRODUCTION AND

INSPECTION

ł

ł

I.

ł

1

Appellant's trial counsel had files a "Motion For Production and Inspection" of all evidence that State had in its possession, both physical and verbal. The request did indicate that if the State had in its possession any exculpatory material that would be beneficial to the defense, should be given for inspection.

5.

In said motion, Appellant made the following request from the State;

"A.Independent inspection by a defense expert of the following items(or a sample thereof), purportedly to be used by the State against The Defense.
1..25 caliber handgun, serial #DK06743;
2.Bullet casing;
3.bullet projectiles gathered in the investigation of the case;
4.Sample of dirt taken as evidence;
5.remnants of burnt shoes or clothes;
6.blood samples taken from pavement; and
7.hair sample(from shovel and grave site).

B.A copy of any and all reports, memos, tests results, findings or other written materials compiles or prepared by experts for the State in analyzing or testing any evidence gathered in anticipation of or to be used in the trial of this case."

The State withheld the lab report that did indicate that the dirt from the grave site and that which was found on the shovel was "significantly different". This did prejudice the defense, as the State's witnesses did testify that this shovel was used to bury the body of the victim. The shovel was actually entered into evidence as proof of the testimony of the State's witnesses.

Appellant was further prejudiced by the State withholding this crucial lab evidence, as, Appellant was unable to refute the testimony of the State's witnesses on this point, and, did allow false testimony and evidence to be presented to support the State's theory of the case.

The actions of the State in withholding the lab reports did deny the Appellant his due process right pursuant to the Sixth Amendment to the Constitution and his comparable rights pursuant to Article 3, Section 26 of the Mississippi Constitution to confront and cross-examine adverse witnesses against him.

ł

ł

The State did also withhold from the defense the ballistics report that did show that the projectile retrieved from the head of the victim, could not be matched to the weapon owned by the Appellant.So that, because the State did not have expert verification to depend on in the ballistics report, it had been alluded to in the evidence submission form, that Appellant had attempted to damage the barrel of the weapon.

This evidence was presented to the jury through the testimony of Detective Andy Calvanesse, who did state that he had information that Appellant had attempted to mar the barrel of the weapon to keep it from being tested by the ballistics expert.

by the State withholding this crucial ballistics report, did prejudice the defense in its cross-examination of this prosecution witness. As, the ballistics

6.

report and the testimony of John Franovich, a firearms expert from the State Crime Lab, did not attest to the conclusion of the State that the barrel of the weapon had been tampered with in any way that would have precluded accurate testing of the weapon.

Also, in the State's withholding of the ballistic report, did hinder the defense in its ability to impeach the testimony of the State's witness Rudy Marin, who had testified that Appellant did tell him that Appellant had shot the victim with his own .25 caliber pistol.

The ballistics report was exculpatory evidence, that should have been turned over to the defense on request. The State's failure to produce this crucial piece of evidence to the defense, did allow false testimony to be presented to the jury.

Also, by the State's failure to inform the defense that there had not been any forensic scientific testing done on the infamous burnt remnants that the State, in fornt of the jury did refer to as shoe remnants, did cause the defense to be forced to stipulate that the burnt remnants were actually Appellant's burnt shoes. This was highly prejudicial to the Appellant, as there was no way that the burnt remnants should have been allowed into evidence, when there was no proof, scientific or otherwise, that the burnt remnants were what the State presented it to be.

Appellant asserts in that the State's presentation of falsified evidence, testimony, and in the suppression of exculpatory evidence from the jury, did prejudice Appellant. If, the exculpatory had not been withheld from the defense, it would have lead to a different result in the finding of the jury.

ł

ł

ł

ł

ł

These claims of the prosecutorial misconduct, does raise serious questions about the reality and appearance of fairness of Appellant's conviction and sentence. Appellant has been denied his due process right to present a defense and a fair trial by an imparial jury.

(4) APPELLANT HAS BEEN DENIED HIS DUE PROCESS RIGHT TO CONFRONTATION BY PROSECUTORIAL MISCONDUCT

The Sixth Amendment's Confrontation Clause, which is also available to defendants in criminal trials pursuant to Article 3, Section 26 of the Mississippi Constitution, provides that a criminal defendant has the right to directly encounter hostile witnesses, the right to cross-examine adverse witnesses, and the right to possession of all exultatory evidence to effectively cross-examine adverse witnesses.

7:

Appellant asserts that because the State withheld crucial excupatory evidence, deny him of his right to confrontation to test both the State's witnesses' credibility and the witnesses' knowledge of the facts bearing on his guilt or innocence. This did deny Appellant of his right to a full and fair opportunity to probe and expose the State's witnesses' infirmities through cross-examinaton.

This violation of Appellant's right to confront and effectively cross-examine the State's witnesses, because of the fact that the State suppressed and withheld crucial exculpatory evidence, and in doing so, effectively denied Appellant a defense. The exculpatory evidence would have posed to the jury a question of the State's witnesses' credibility.

Appellant has been denied the right to the fundamental fairness that is guaranteed to defendants in criminal trials pursuant to the Sixth Amendment of the United States Constitution and his comparable rights pursuant to Article 3,Section 26 of the Mississippi Constitution. The actions of the State did deny the Appellant of his due process right to fair trial.

Appellant further asserts that his conviction and sentence has been obtained in violation of the **United States and Mississippi Constitutions.**Because of the State's failure to turn over exculpatory evidence in the State's possession, Appellant has been denied his right to confrontation.

(5) PROSECUTORIAL MISCONDUCT IN CLOSING ARGUMENT

-

RULE 3.02 of the Uniform Rules of Circuit and County Court Practice, dictates the policy of attorneys in the trial setting. Attorneys are required to act in a fit, dignified, and courteous manner which will not degrade or interfer with the adminstration of justice. Rule 3.02, also requires that "[I]n the argument to the jury, the attorneys will be required to keep within proper bounds, and any attempt to inject improper matter may be stopped by the court without the necessity of an objection. "In the case of Appellant, the State Attorney overstepped the bounds outlined in Rule 3.02, and did interject claims in the evidence that were not supported by the evidence, by expert testimony or otherwise.

. The State Attorney did state to the jury that the projectile removed from the victim, was matched to the weapon that did belong to the Appellant. (Tr.707-708). This was a false representation of the evidence and testimony of John Franovich, a firearms expert, and of the ballistics report which stated that the projectile may have had the same similarities in class charcteristics, of Appellant's weapon, but it could not be positively stated that it came from Appellant's weapon. The State Attorney did also state that there was positive evidence that had been presented by the State to prove that:(1)burnt remnants is a Sperry Topsider shoe(Tr.707);(2)that he,(the State Attorney),knew who took them off and set them on fire,the defendant(Tr.707);(3)that the tire tracks were the tire tracks of the victims's truck,(Tr.711);(4)that the shovel had been proved positively to have been used to bury the victim(Tr.732);and finally,(5)that the physical and scientific evidence support all of the evidence that had been presented by the State.(Tr.703).

The State did misrepresent the evidence by mis-stating facts and commenting on facts not in evidence. This is a fact that, because there was no positive proof that did connect the projectile from the Appellant's weapon and the projectile removed from the victim. Nor was there any positive proof, expert or scientific that could be stated conclusively that the burnt remnants were from a Sperry Topsider Shoe or, that Appellant had burnt them. All the evidence presented to the jury about the burnt remnants, and who, had set them on fire, was nothing more than speculation and conjecture on the part of the State Attorney. There was no direct evidence that would have supported this conclusion by the State.

The State had made a big deal before the jury of the tire tracks that were allegedly found behind the Peterson's home. The State did state positively that these tire tracks were from the pick-up truck that the victim had been driving. (Tr.711). But that State presented no proof that there were plaster casts made and had been matched to the truck of the victim. This was as improper comment on the evidence which was in no way supported by the testimony or the evidence presented by the State.

the State Attorney also took this improper closing argument a step further by testifying to what was in the mind of the victim that,did cause Appellant to kill him.(Tr.734).There was no way that the State Attorney could testify to what was in the victim's mind to the jury,as it would be impossible for Appellant to refute this testimony of the State Attorney.Which did deny Appellant his right to confrontation.

The State Attorney in his closing argument stated when speaking about the alleged Sperry Topsider Shoes:"I know who took them off his feet and set them on fire, the defendant."(Tr.707). Here that State Attorney is testifying to something that was supported by the evidence. Also the State Attorney projects an idea to the jury that he has information that conclusively proved that the burnt

remnants were the Topsider Shoes, and that Appellant did burn them. This was an improper argument as it did invade the province of the jury as the sole trier of the evidence. It also gave the jury information that had not been presented in the trial.

The State's case against Appellant did not include any scientific evidence that did tie Appellant to the crime. The only scientific evidence that the State had, was a bullet casing that was supposedly found in the truck the victim was driving. Which was once owned by the Appellant's family and driven numerous times by the Appellant. Other than that one piece of evidence, there was nothing else. The State Attorney even misrepresented this evidence to the jury. (Tr. 707).

This misrepresentation of the evidence by State in the case of the Appellant, was highly prejudicial, as the misrepresentation did allegedly provide physical evidence supporting the testimony of the State's two star witnesses, whose testimony was suspect at best. Since there was no scientific physical evidence that could connect Appellant to the crime, the State had to fabricate scientific credibility to what would otherwise be spurious evidence.

Though not one of the errors of the prosecutorial misconduct in his closing argument deny Appellant to his right of a fair trail, but, when taken in the context of the whole trial the cumulative effect of the errors infected the entire trial and the resulting conviction violates Appellant's due process right to a fair trial.

(6) INEFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF APPELLATE COUNSEL

Appellate Counsel, Bobby Joe Randall, (hereinafter know as Appellate Counsel), was ineffective in his representation and preparation of the Appeal of Appellant. Appellant Counsel had asked for two(2)thirty day extensions of time. The first was filed on the 2nd day January 1997, which was granted by the Court. The other was filed on the 5th February 1997, also granted by the Court.

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