## IN THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

### JON KURRIE PETERSON

.

VS.

APPELLANT

NO. 2008-CP-1438-COA

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

APPELLEE

## **BRIEF FOR THE APPELLEE**

## APPELLEE DOES NOT REQUEST ORAL ARGUMENT

### JIM HOOD, ATTORNEY GENERAL

BY: W. GLENN WATTS SPECIAL ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL MISSISSIPPI BAR NO.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL POST OFFICE BOX 220 JACKSON, MS 39205-0220 TELEPHONE: (601) 359-3680

#

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

### SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

1. The record reflects that Peterson's direct appeal was affirmed. His conviction was affirmed on direct appeal on March 9, 1999. **Peterson v. State**, 740 So. 2d 940 (Miss. 1999). His motion for a rehearing and a petition for a writ of certiorari was denied. 740 So. 2d at page 940.

Peterson filed for permission to proceed in the trial court under M.C. A. § 99-39-7 which was denied by the Mississippi Supreme Court on November 14, 2003. See attached copy of Order from the Mississippi Supreme Court in **Peterson v State**, **2002-M-01410**, by Judge George C. Carlson, Jr. on November 14, 2003. C.P. 76.

On April 17, 2008 Peterson filed a petition for post conviction relief with the trial court. C.P. 6-71. The trial court denied relied finding that Peterson did not have permission to proceed under M. C. A. sect. 99-39-7. C.P. 76. The court also pointed out that Peterson had been previously denied permission to proceed. It therefore lacked jurisdiction. C.P. 76.

In addition, the record reflected that Peterson had previously been denied permission to proceed in the trial court by the Mississippi Supreme Court. This would constitute "a final judgment"under M. C.A. § 99-39-27(9). The present motion would thus be barred as "a successive writ." **Crosby v. State**, 982 So.2d 1003, 1005 (Miss. App. 2008).

2. Peterson's claim of ineffective assistance of counsel was raised in his direct appeal. See **Peterson v. State**, 740 So 2d 940 at 951. This issue was therefore res judicata. In addition, the non-jurisdiction issues that Peterson attempted to raise about evidentiary matters in this his second motion were all waived since they could have been raised at trial or on direct appeal. **Mann v. State**, 490 So. 2d 910 (Miss 1986) ;**Wiley v. State**, 517 So. 2d 1373, 1378 (Miss. 1987). **Stovall v. State**, 873 So. 2d 1056, 1058 (¶13) (Miss. Ct. App. 2004).

#### ARGUMENT

#### **PROPOSITION I**

#### Ĭ.

# PETERSON WHOSE CONVICTION WAS AFFIRMED ON DIRECT APPEAL DID NOT RECEIVE PERMISSION TO PROCEED IN THE TRIAL COURT. THIS MOTION WAS ALSO A SUCCESSIVE WRIT UNDER M.C. A. 99-39-27.

On April 22, 2008, Peterson filed a "motion to vacate judgment and sentence or in the alternative motion for a new trial." C.P. 6-71. There was a claim of ineffective assistance of counsel which was raised on direct appeal. And there were attempts at raising evidentiary issues related to his conviction for murder and arson in 1996.

On July 23, 2008, the trial court denied relief. C.P. 76. The court found that Peterson had not received permission from the Mississippi Supreme Court to proceed in the trial court under M C A sect. 99-39-7. C.P. 76. From that denial of relief, Peterson filed notice of appeal. C.P. 84.

His appeal brief is a repetition of the claims in his motion. Appellant's brief page 1-27.

The appellee would submit that the record reflects that the trial court correctly found, after reviewing Peterson's motion, that he did not have permission to proceed under M. C. A. sect. 99-39-7. C.P. 76. In addition, the record reflects that Peterson had previously sought permission which was denied by Judge George C. Carlson, Jr. for the Mississippi Supreme Court on November 14, 2003. C.P. 76.

The court found that under M. C. A. § 99-39-7 a petitioner who had his conviction affirmed on direct appeal must file a motion to proceed with the Mississippi Supreme Court. As stated by the trial court in denying relief Peterson had not received permission to proceed in the trial court from the Mississippi Supreme Court as required by M. C. A. § 99-39-7. The court also found that there was record evidence indicating that Peterson had previously sought permission to proceed from the Mississippi Supreme Court. C.P. 76. That permission was denied. Therefore under M C A § 99-39-27(9), the appellee would submit

that this current motion to vacate and seek a new trial was "a successive application."

As stated by the trial court in his Order denying relief:

Peterson has not applied for or received permission to proceed from the Mississippi Supreme Court. He is required to obtain permission in light of his previous direct appeal, and his prior motion to proceed in the trial court which was denied in 2003. M C A § 99-39-7 requires that he seek leave of the Mississippi Supreme Court to proceed. The Court's previous order for the state to respond to the petition is rescinded. It is therefore, Ordered that the motion to vacate judgment and sentence in the alternative motion for a new trial with brief in support" is dismissed. C.P. 76. (Emphasis by appellee).

The record from the Mississippi Supreme Court docket indicates that Peterson sought on two prior

occasions to proceed in the trial court, The first was in August 26, 2002. The Court entered an Order

denying permission "on November 22, 2002." On a second occasion on November 3, 2003, a petition was

filed a second time with the Supreme Court. "On November 14, 2003," Judge George C. Carlson Jr. denied

permission in 2002-M-01410. A copy of that Order is attached to this brief as exhibit A.

M. C. A. § 99-39-27 states that the denial of an application is a final judgment and serves as a bar

to "any successive application" under this chapter.

(9) The dismissal or denial of an application under this section is a final judgment and shall be a bar to a second or successive application under this chapter.

In Crosby v. State, 982 So.2d 1003, 1005 (Miss. App. 2008), the court found that trial court had

properly denied Crosby's petition since he had not been granted permission to proceed from the Supreme

Court.

¶ 6. Crosby filed a motion for permission to proceed in the trial court, but his motion was denied. Because Crosby was not granted permission from the supreme court, the trial court lacked jurisdiction to entertain his request for post-conviction relief. Likewise, this court lacks jurisdiction to entertain an appeal of that action.

 $\P$  7. We find that Crosby's motion for post-conviction relief is dismissed for lack of jurisdiction.

Therefore the appellee would submit that this court should affirm the Circuit Court of Harrison

County in finding that it lacked jurisdiction. It lacked jurisdiction since Peterson had not received permission to proceed in the trial court from the Mississippi Supreme Court. It was also barred as "a successive writ" under M. C. A. sect. 99-39-27.

•

•

1

#### PROPOSITION II

## INEFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE WAS RES JUDICATA. AND THE OTHER ISSUES WERE WAIVED SINCE THEY COULD HAVE BEEN RAISED AT TRIAL OR ON DIRECT APPEAL.

Mr. Peterson 's motion to vacate judgment and for a new trial claimed ineffective assistance of counsel, as well as attempted to raise evidentiary issues that were waived when he did not raise them at his trial or on direct appeal.

The record reflects that ineffective assistance of counsel was raised in his direct appeal. This issue was decided adversely to Peterson in his direct appeal. **Peterson v State**, 740 So. 2d at page 951-952.

In **Mann v. State**, 490 So 2d 910 (Miss 1986), the Supreme court found that claims of alleged exclusion of exculpatory evidence, alleged judicial misconduct along with unreliable identification were waived. The were waived since they could have been raised at trial or on direct appeal. These are some of the same grounds being raised by Peterson in his appeal from the trial court's denial of relief. Motion, page 7-34.

In **Bevel v. State**, 669 So. 2d. 14, 17 (Miss. 1996), the Court found that merely raising a claim of ineffective assistance where a defendant was time barred from filing for relief under the UPCCRA was not enough to constitute an exception to the statute of limitations. As stated:

Bevel raises a claim of ineffective assistance of counsel. It is conceivable that under the facts of a particular case, this Court might find that a lawyer's performance was so deficient, and so prejudicial to the defendant, that the defendant's fundamental constitutional rights were violated. However, this Court has never held that merely raising a claim of ineffectual assistance of counsel is sufficient to surmount the procedural bar. It may also be noted that this Court held in **Patterson v. State**, 594 So. 2d. 606 (Miss. 1992), that a trial court's failure to advise a defendant of maximum and minimum sentences does not implicate a "fundamental constitutional right" sufficient to except a case from the procedural bar of Sect 99-39-5.

In addition, these forensic issues related to the sufficiency of the evidence were waived for failure

#### **PROPOSITION II**

## INEFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE WAS RES JUDICATA. AND THE OTHER ISSUES WERE WAIVED SINCE THEY COULD HAVE BEEN RAISED AT TRIAL OR ON DIRECT APPEAL.

Mr. Peterson 's motion to vacate judgment and for a new trial claimed ineffective assistance of counsel, as well as attempted to raise evidentiary issues that were waived when he did not raise them at his trial or on direct appeal.

The record reflects that ineffective assistance of counsel was raised in his direct appeal. This issue was decided adversely to Peterson in his direct appeal. **Peterson v State**, 740 So. 2d at page 951-952.

In **Mann v. State**, 490 So 2d 910 (Miss 1986), the Supreme court found that claims of alleged exclusion of exculpatory evidence, alleged judicial misconduct along with unreliable identification were waived. The were waived since they could have been raised at trial or on direct appeal. These are some of the same grounds being raised by Peterson in his appeal from the trial court's denial of relief. Motion, page 7-34.

In **Bevel v. State**, 669 So. 2d. 14, 17 (Miss. 1996), the Court found that merely raising a claim of ineffective assistance where a defendant was time barred from filing for relief under the UPCCRA was not enough to constitute an exception to the statute of limitations. As stated:

Bevel raises a claim of ineffective assistance of counsel. It is conceivable that under the facts of a particular case, this Court might find that a lawyer's performance was so deficient, and so prejudicial to the defendant, that the defendant's fundamental constitutional rights were violated. However, this Court has never held that merely raising a claim of ineffectual assistance of counsel is sufficient to surmount the procedural bar. It may also be noted that this Court held in **Patterson v. State**, 594 So. 2d. 606 (Miss. 1992), that a trial court's failure to advise a defendant of maximum and minimum sentences does not implicate a "fundamental constitutional right" sufficient to except a case from the procedural bar of Sect 99-39-5.

In addition, these forensic issues related to the sufficiency of the evidence were waived for failure

to raise them in Peterson's direct appeal.

In Wiley v. State, 517 So. 2d 1373, 1378 (Miss. 1987), the Mississippi Supreme Court found Wiley was not entitled to proceed with a hearing on his motion in the trial court of DeSoto County. Wiley waived issues addressed in his direct appeal, as well as issues that could have been raised with the trial court, or on direct appeal.

Issues C, D, G, N, O, P, Q and R were not raised on direct appeal or at the trial court. Thus, the claims are procedurally barred and not subject to further review by this Court, under M. C. A. § 99-39-21. Wilcher v. State, 479 So. 2d 710 (Miss. 1985). Additionally, claims which were available, but not previously asserted on direct appeal, are waived and, on this additional ground these claims are not subject to further review.

While not conceding that these evidentiary issues were waived for failure to raise any sufficiency of the evidence issues on direct appeal, they are also lacking in merit. While the forensic test results on the soil samples on the burial shovel allegedly could not conclusively identify the soil remnants on the shovel as being the same as the soil sample found on the shallow grave for the victim, the result, nevertheless, concluded that "they appear similar." In addition they were similar in some, if not all of their chemical composition. R.E. 45.

While the ballistic results were not conclusive for some of the projectiles, the conclusion was that exhibit 5 projectile was fired from exhibit 4, the .25 caliber auto handgun. R.E. 46-47. There was also testimony that Peterson had tried "to damage the inside of the barrel after the murder occurred." R.E. 48.

While the shoe remnant remains could not be identified as to the type of shoe, it did appear to be the sole of a shoe which was burned at the Peterson residence.

And finally the record in this cause indicates that Peterson was identified by two different witnesses as the person who murdered Mr. Saucier. Mr. Rudy Marin testified to assisting Peterson in burning up the pickup truck in which the body of the victim had been transported some three miles to a shallow build grave. He testified to not only assisting Peterson in this task but also that Peterson admitted to shooting and killing the victim. Ms. Vanessa McClendon testified to assisting Peterson in burying the victim which was transported to a wooded area for the digging of a shallow grave with a shovel taken from the Peterson home. She also testified to seeing the victim's body inside the cab of the truck after seeing him leave with Peterson and then hearing what sounded like gun shots. Dr. McGarry testified that the victim was shot five times in the head, neck chest, right arm and abdoman, 740 So 2d at 943.

In **Stovall v. State**, 873 So. 2d 1056, 1058 (¶13) (Miss. Ct. App. 2004), the Court found that "there must at least appear to be some basis for the truth of the claim before the limitation period will be waived."

In short, the record reflects that Peterson's attempted appeal should be dismissed as a successive writ, but that it is also lacking in merit. Ineffective assistance was resjudicata since it was decided on his direct appeal. 740 So. 2d 940, 951 (Miss 1999). The evidentiary issues Peterson attempts to raise could have been raised at trial or in his direct appeal. This includes his claims of alleged misconduct, exculpatory evidence withheld, and inaccurate identification testimony. **Mann, supra** and **Wiley, supra**.

In addition, as shown with cites to the record taken from his direct appeal, there was corroborated eye and ear witness testimony sufficient for supporting the jury's verdict without the alleged inconclusive secondary evidence dealing with the shovel, the ballistics conclusions, and the identification of a shoe heel remnant.

10

## **CONCLUSION**

The trial court's denial of relief for lack of jurisdiction should be affirmed for the reasons cited in

this brief.